NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM
Marketing Committee

Thursday, February 15, 2018
9:00 A.M.

MEETING LOCATION:

401 N. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89701

Video Location
Grant Sawyer Building #5100
555 E. Washington Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739



T M MM o O COO 43 C3




TRAVELNEVADA

NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Meeting of the Marketing Committee
Thursday, February 15, 2018 — 9:00 A.M.

MEETING LOCATION: VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATION:
NCOT — Laxalt Building Governor’'s Conference Room #5100
401 N. Carson St. 2™ Floor 555 E. Washington Ave.

Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89101

TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:
888-363-4735; Access Code: 4878739

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Lt. Governor Mark Hutchison, Chair
Don Newman Jennifer Cunningham Cathy Tull

THIS MEETING IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW"” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Museum, Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Las Vegas-Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, Nevada

Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION

e Action may be taken on those items denoted “For Possible Action”.
e [tems on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.
e Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

1|Page



NCOT Marketing Meeting
February 15, 2018 | Agenda

An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

No action may be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until that matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken {NRS 241.020).
Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public recard. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.

AGENDA

A. Opening

Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Lt. Governor Hutchison
Roll Call and Determination of Quorum- Lt. Governor Hutchison

B. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be
allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations,
the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the
discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by
previous speakers.

C. For Possible Action - Approval of Minutes

Approval of the August 2, 2017 NCOT Marketing Committee Meeting
Minutes.

D. Cardinal Path Update

Review of Data Collection and Reporting Model

E. Ad Copy Testing Research Update from Destination Analysts

El. Waddie Mitchell Broadcast Spot Review
E2.  Visual Storytelling Concepts



NCOT Marketing Meeting
February 15, 2018 | Agenda

F. For Possible Action -~ New Creative Roll-out FY18

F1. Review and approval of edited Waddie Mitchell broadcast spot for
Spring/Summer placement.

F2. Review and approval of concept for new broadcast spot based on
visual storytelling.

G. Arts & Culture Guide Update

Timeline and editorial update regarding the cultural guide being produced
by Meredith Publishing.

H. Discussion Only — New Marketing Committee Member

Discussion of possible candidates for a new marketing committee member
to replace John Wagnon who resigned. Recommendation will be brought
to the full NCOT Commission for approval during its March meeting.

I. Commissioner Comments

J. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be
allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations,
the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by
previous speakers.

K. For Possible Action — Adjournment

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or by email to
ddvkes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada and online at www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at {775) 687-0621 or ddvkes@travelnevada.com.

3|Page













Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
MARKETING MEETING
August 2, 2017

The Nevada Commission on Tourism Marketing Committee held a Commission meeting at 9:00 a.m. on
August 2, 2017 at 401 N. Carson St. Carson City, NV 89701.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor Hutchison, Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:59 a.m.

Commissioners Present:

Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Bon Newman

John Wagnon

Jennifer Cunningham

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Cathy Tull

Staff present:

Claudia Vecchio, Director

Sarah Bradley, DAG

Teri Laursen, Director Sales and Industry Partners
Bethany Drysdale, Chief Communications Officer

Guests:

Carissa Richardson, Fahlgren Mortine
Kristen Jones, Fahlgren Mortine
Marty McDonald, Fahlgren Mortine
Mark Westman, Fahlgren Mortine

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

HUTCHISON:; Lieutenant Governor here in Las Vegas. Well, Claudia, tell us when you're ready
to go and we will call the meeting to order.

VECCHIO: Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Claudia Vecchio for the record. | will call roll
of our Marketing Committee. Lieutenant Governor Hutchison?

HUTCHISON: I'm here.

VECCHIO: Commissioner John Wagnon?

1



WAGNON:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

CUNNINGHAM:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

CUNNINGHAM:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

Here.
Commissioner Don Newman?
I'm here by telephone.

Cathy Tull is on vacation, so she is absent, excused. At our last Commission
Meeting, the Commissioners approved having Jennifer Cunningham serve as
part of this Marketing Committee Meeting. lennifer Cunningham is here with us
and we're thrilled to have her.

Welcome back, Jennifer.
Thank you, Don.

That concludes the Roll. The Agenda was posted according to Open Meeting
Laws last week, so we should be all set on that front.

Great. We have a quorum from that. Jennifer, we happy to have you working
with us and we couldn't have picked a better person. It's great to have you back
in the saddle with us.

My pleasure.

Well, let's continue on to Agenda Item B, Public Comment. Are there any
members of the public in Carson City who would like to make a public comment
and to address the Commission at this time?

There doesn’t seem to be any in the north.

Okay. There is nobody here in Las Vegas either coming forward for public
comment, so we will move on from Agenda ltem B and we will move on to
Agenda Item C for Approval of the Minutes. Have all of the Commissioners had
an opportunity to take a look at the minutes, and are there any changes, or
additions, or corrections, to the minutes that you would like to offer at this
time? Commissioner Wagnon?



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

Approval of Minutes

WAGNON: Yeah. | just move to approve the minutes of the February 8th, 2017 Marketing
Committee Meeting as submitted.

HUTCHISON: Thank you very much. Is there a second?

NEWMAN: Commissioner Newman. | would second the motion.

HUTCHISON: Thank you. The motion is seconded. Discussion on the motion? Hearing none,
those in favor, signify by saying aye.

GROUP; Aye,

HUTCHISON: Any opposed, nay. That motion carries. Let the record reflect that Ms.

Cunningham was not at our last meeting and did not vote.

Overview of Always On Campaign Concept

HUTCHISON: All right. Let's move on to Agenda Item D, Overview of Always on Campaign
Concept. Ms. Vecchio | will let you introduce this for us.

VECCHIO: Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Claudia Vecchio for the record. We have had
the great pleasure of having the Fahlgren team here for the past couple of days.
We have been working with Fahlgren for many years, and it's so exciting to see
the evolution of that team and our team and how they're working together. We
will provide you with the information you need for the Always on Campaign.
We are excited about being able to go from a two-time seasonal campaign per
year, to a more ongoing marketing effort incorporating, to a greater extent,
digital and social media, and other paid components which they will go through
with you. But, in these conversations |'ve had with the team in the past couple
of days, | have just been astounded at how they have taken these ideas and
created this whole 360-integrated effort. | am excited to have them show this
to you. We have always known that these were passionate, smart marketers,
both the Fahlgren team and our team, but, boy, | think we have come to a
completely new level with what we're doing with content, in digital, and the
social piece of this.

I just couldn't be more excited to have you all see this and hear your input as we
roll out this more year-round effort with these various social and digital
components. This is really when we as marketers get incredibly excited about

3



MCDONALD:

HUTCHISON:

MCDONALD:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

how this is all evolving and look forward to your input on all of that. The
Fahlgren team is going to run us through a PowerPoint presentation that they
have, and | will talk a little bit about how we got where we are, and the vision
for the Always On campaign. It's a pretty comprehensive PowerPoint.

Then we will go back and break it down in pieces based on the agenda items
here. Marty McDonald of Fahlgren will start this, and then she will introduce
her team as they go through the presentation.

Good Morning. Marty McDonald. It's like a little gymnastics here, trying to
figure out the right way to stand. Can everyone see us?

All right. Thanks. Well, good morning again. It's always great to be back with
you. | feel like | get to always do the part that is kind of the continuity of how
far we have come since we last met, making sure that we're making good on
promises we made when we first talked to you about this account and this
program. We're excited to give you an overview. If you could switch the slide,
we will take you through a PowerPoint.

We do have a brief, orchestrated presentation. As it relates to the agenda,
before we get into this, because of the 360 nature of this program and
campaign, that Claudia eluded to, | want to affirm that it's okay for us to go
through the whole program for you. We do have several items that are for
possible action, but if it's okay, can we paint a picture of the entire program
then go back and revisit those items that we need action upon? Is that all right?

Sounds great.

Excellent. Okay. So, for the agenda, first we will take a quick look back at the
program, where we're from and look at the paid media performance. We are at
a point where we are now shifting into the, Always-on. As Claudia mentioned,
we're moving from the two major swells in campaign and looking more at that
Always-on sustained campaign.

We need to drill specifically into paid media, and we will show you what that
will look like and also do the look back to establish and try to remind you were
we have been. If we take a look at '17, and then we will move forward to the
Always-On for "18. We want to make sure that we are transparent in talking to
you about in line improvements and where we are with the campaign. We will
give you some updates on the campaign, what we're preforming and where we
are going moving forward, broadcast storyboards, specifically. And then the
exciting new project we have, the 360-virtual reality project. We're very excited

4



RICHARDSON:

Nevada Cammission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

about it. It is designed with that 360 view in mind, so it will be something that
will benefit us from a sales perspective, from a marketing perspective, a public
relations perspective. Talk about the update to the video series. Will show you
again some more work in the video realm, and then we will end with just a quick
note on the integration and how it extends into the earned media and PR. So,
with that, | would like to for Chris Richardson my colleague, to come up and
walk you through the paid media.

Thank you. This is Chris Richardson for the record. | just want to [Inaudible] and
kind of give you an idea of the great performance we saw with last year's
campaign, because obviously that is going to play into what we look at for this
upcoming year and build off those successes. Just some broad numbers just to
give you just a general idea of how much we delivered in those raw numbers
this past year. The paid Media Campaign delivered over 83.5 almost 83.6M
impressions, 300K clicks on our banner ads, we have over 720K interactions with
our rich media unit, which | will show you in a little bit and explain a little more
about what interaction is with those. Video completions of our pre-roll video
across the web was 4.5 almost 4.6M people who viewed the entire video. Site
sessions, 122K. And full-completions of about 2,400. So, that's the bulk
numbers of how we did, so we will get a little more into the details now.

When we look at benchmarks, we over exceeded all of our benchmarks by quite
a bit. This was mostly due to adding a couple of new partners this year, and we
also added some new interactive rich media that we will show you, and we also
did some interactive mobile, that you swipe and there is videos. That really
increased a lot of our benchmarks overall. This looking year-over-year, when
we compare to the highest point we were last year, so we continue to improve
year over year.

As you can see with click thru rate, we were 200 percent over site sessions,
which is driving people directly to TravelNevada, we were up 53 percent year-
over-year. Goal completion, which | spoke about earlier, includes things like
visitor form submissions, e-guide views and downloads, e-newsletter signups,
people who are trip planning on the site, and partner referrals. All of those—
when those actions are complete on the website, it triggers as a goal
completion in our records.

The only thing that wasn't up as much, it was still up but not as much was, the
video completion rate. That was just due to the fact that we're running the
same video this year as last year, which is why we are taking a fresh look at that
video for next year. Moving on, this is just a breakdown, we went through what
the goals are on the site. This year we actually worked with a new partner and |

5



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

will say that these are for paid media only. We had quite a few more actions on
the site, but from paid media partners specifically.

We did have quite a few e-newsletters signups, more so than we ever had in the
past because of the addition of a partner called Travel Spike. They do native
content that is sent out through e-newsletters by Budget Travel, a travel
network. Those people are already pre-inclined to sign up for e-newsletters.
We found that they were much more apt to sign up for ours, which is great.
That's definitely a partner that we're really happy with.

Top-performing partners. | will explain to you what some of these partners do,
but most clicks came from Kinetic, which is our social partner. They work with
us doing our ads on Facebook and Instagram. Kargo is what | spoke about with
the interactive rich media on mobile, specifically. | will show you some
examples of those ads in a minute,

Those generated the most clicks, which isn't too surprising, social and mobile
tend to be high click through rates. Those video links came from Clearstream,
which is a partner that allows us to post our video as pre-roll before
contextually relevant videos. The person is in the right mindset. They're not
just going to play it before a music video, they're going to play it before travel-
focused videos, adventure-focused videos. We tend to see more video plays
and completions because the person is interested in the content that we are
putting in front of them. Sojern who is a really great partner, they actually are
able to target the audience based on their search activities. If they go to, let's
say, United Airlines, and search for a flight to Nevada or possibly one of our
competitor states, they are then cookied and we are able to target them with
ads. This is when they don't book. So, then we're able to follow up with them
with messages to try to get them to convert. In the next slide, | will show you
some really exciting data we got back from them about people who saw our ads
and the actions they went on to take.

Again, full-completion, we talked about Travel Spike, site visits Kinetic, social,
we had a lot of clicks from them. They also drew a ton of site visits. The average
time on site, Weekend Sherpa is an L.A. and San Francisco based newsletter or
website that gives, in those areas, weekend activities. We go there and find out
what your outdoor adventure should be for that weekend. It's a very relevant
partner, and those people are obviously interested in coming to the site and
spending a lot of the time.

The last thing then on this slide for—we talked about how we had almost 123K
site sessions driven by the paid media this past fiscal year. We also worked with

6



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

three different partners, Lonely Planet, Expedia and Trip Advisor, and had
specific TravelNevada custom landing pages within those sites. Those sites
actually generated a little over 268K additional page views within those sites. |
will show you some screen shots of what they look like. You can see really good
on site engagement, two-minutes, three-minutes, over a minute. So, people on
those sites, sometimes they will want to leave and they're kind of there, so it's a
good way for us to stay in front of them without them having to leave.

Next thing | want to quickly touch on Sojern. So, they can actually see the
actions of people who see our ads go on to take. We found that actually people
who saw the paid media ads, 18K of them went on to book flights to Nevada,
but almost a thousand went on to book hotels in Nevada. For vacation
packages, 380 of them, and with rental cars, 2,900. That's really exciting
information that we can directly attribute back to the ad campaign. We really
like that they do provide us that data.

This gives you an idea of what the rich media banner ads would look like. | was
talking earlier about these interaction rates, so an interaction would be these
different regions. You can hover over and on the right it would populate the
description of key things to do in those areas, the activity. The interaction
would be anytime someone hovers over it and spend some time there. We can
actually see how long people are hovering over it. If there is a certain part of
the State that people are more interested in, we can see that they're spending
more time hovering over that area. These are not only great for our audience
because it engages them because they're interested and it educates them, but
it's also great for us because we get a lot of really good data about what people
are interested in and what people are looking at.

As far as the content side of the paid media that we did, | will just give you an
idea. | was talking about landing pages that we did, the top left one is with
Lonely Planet. It was an editorial piece but it has a lot of really big beautiful
pictures and people spent quite a bit of time there. The bottom right is the
page on Expedia. We had some ads on Expedia that drove to
TravelNevada.com, and we also had some ads that were driving to this landing
page specifically.

On the bottom left is an example of Travel Spike. That was an editorial piece
that ran across the network of the newsletters, but this specific example is
Budget Travel. Then, the top right is Weekend Sherpa. 5o, it's a combination of
e-newsletter and a landing page. Then as far as display ads go, you can see on
the top the Lonely Planet ad, that was driving to the Lonely Planet landing page.
We also worked with Atlas Obscura who develops really good interactive ads.

7



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

We really like to try to get the educational piece because these are maore
dreaming stage audience members, who aren’t necessarily going to he ready to
click throught to TravelNevada's site, so we want to give them as much as we
can in a banner ad to get them interested and hopefully get them to click
through.

At the bottom, it's actually our Kargo ad, those are mobile apps that are rich
media interactive. They can actually click on those. There are hotspots over the
State, and then they click it takes them to a magnifying glass and gives them
more information. The one in the middle with the brown bar at the top, that
has our three different buckets, and when those are swiped over, a video would
populate that correlated to that different bucket. Really interactive and it kind
of gives the person more information if they're not instantly ready to click
through to the site.

Our video we have running; we have a partnership with Travel Channel. | know
we talked to you about that previously. It's part of that [Inaudible] video that
we have on the Travel Channel. Then we also have, through Clearstream, a
video running on connected TVs. We are reaching people on that screen as
well. Then with Hulu, we actually have an ad selector, so all three of our videos
populated and they got to pick which one they wanted to watch, which also—
like 1 said, it provided us group data along with-it's less intrusive if they feel like
they get to choose the ad that they're going to watch.

Then we have our social unit. We did a combination of carousel units where
they can flip through all of the photos, get multiple content pieces based on the
photo. We also had a photo ad that drove the people to the visitors guide to try
to download the visitors guide. We also had a canvas ad, which, | don't know if
you have ever been served a canvas ad, but you can swipe up and down, and
side to side, there is video within it. It's a really beautiful ad. | don't know if you
have an example, but we can pass the phone around if you would like to take a
look.

Moving on to fiscal year '18, we want to talk a little bit about our approach
moving forward because we’ll be moving to the Always On. Basically
everything is blurring with the dreaming and planning stages, it's happening all
the time now. It's falling less and less within those seasons. It's important for
us to be able to speak to people when they're ready to engage with us, which is
really anytime during the year. The benefit of really sustaining the conversation
through the entire year, we can move them down the funnel. We can also have
the whole fiscal year of opportunity to retarget people with customized
messages based on where they were going on the site in order to push them

8



VECCHIO:

RICHARDSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

down the funnel and push them into the planning process and eventually
booking as well.

Just to give you an idea of how we're going to get there because this is kind of a
transition year. Our plan is, the current fiscal year '17 campaign we always
placed it through August. That stops running next month and we're actually
going to get the fiscal year schedule to do a small bridge campaign where we're
working to keep partners like Trip Advisor, Expedia, most of our travel-focused
planning partners where we don't want that conversation to die off, and it's
really important to be in front of them. We're going to continue with those
partners for a two-month bridge campaign until we're ready to pick up with the
full-fledged campaign in November, like we typically would. Then, instead of
going through August next year, we will end to June, and then that will put us
on that fiscal year for the coming years. But, this year it's just going to be a little
bit of a transition, but then this will get us moving forward on a fiscal year.

Then, | wanted to just quickly touch the target market as we're getting into the
planning, and our approach, and kind of give you guys an idea of what we are
looking at for next year. Traditional TV markets of L.A, San Francisco, Phoenix
and Salt Lake City. So, this hasn't changed. These are the ones we used last
year as well. The only difference is we are moving Las Vegas and Reno to
mobile only. The reason for that is because there is a really strategic way we
can talk to those people. We know they're here, so let's take advantage of that.
They are on their mobile devices, they're already here, we know they're not on
a desktop, so let's focus all of our effort into mobile and really getting them to
explore. Even going so far as to create a separate creative message to target
just in-state, to really drive people to go out and explore and do more things
within the State while they're here.

Then, the digital display, mobile-digital video, we're going to obviously include
the above TV markets, we are also going to add in Boise, Dallas, Portland,
Sacramento, and San Diego—which there is no change there, that is the same as
last year as well. Really the main change is kind of shifting our strategy with Las
Vegas and Reno to make it a little more direct and we're looking at pushing
people that we know are here, to get out and explore. That is it for the Always
On media. | will turn it back over to Marty.

Any questions?

Yeah. Do you have questions?



MCDONALD:

CUNNINGHAM:

RICHARDSON:

CUNNINGHAM:

WAGNON:

RICHARDSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

We so appreciate the fact that this marketing committee exists and | think that
it gives us a really wonderful opportunity to really go a little deeper, maybe too
deep at times, but this is our opportunity to really share in a lot of detail about
the paid media approach that we just went through, and | know it's a lot of
information. We will pause and just ask if there are questions, or we welcome
your insight, observations, and anything you want to discuss at this point.

| will jump in. First off, the target markets, thank you. That really complements
what we're doing in Reno and it reinforces our messaging. We have recently
started jumping into the Pacific North West. We're a little bit more on the
Seattle, but we could certainly use the help in Portland, and the southern
California area has really shown a tremendous response to our initial advertising
efforts there. Then, obviously, the Bay Area and Sacramento is great, too—and
Boise, we appreciate. We're seeing a nice increase in Boise. We have the air
service now, but | think your efforts—via digital advertising, but | think your
efforts are really helping drive some business down.

I really appreciate that. Jennifer Cunningham for the record. | just had a
question. When you talked about the retargeting, which | loved, you're
retargeting competitive states? [I'm just curious, what do you consider
competitive states? Who are you going—where are you re-targeting from?

This is Chris Richardson for the record. it's mostly California, Colorado, Arizona,
that might be the three big ones that we have. | feel like we might also do some
things around National Parks as well with Trip Advisor. So, if they're searching
for National Parks.

Makes sense.

Hi. John Wagnon. You know, the results are fabulous, actually. Those are
impressive to see thase increases over the henchmark. 1 think the campaign is
incredible, really insightful in delivering content in the right way to the right
people. The addition of the interactive rich media and interactive maobile, |
think that is also a great, great move. That app on social, that's incredible.
Those are cool ads. When we shift from the seasonal to the Always On strategy,
is the content going to change? Oris it like one size fits all season long? | mean,
the content in winter will be winter content, and the summer will be summer
content, et. cetera?

There is actually going to be even more opportunity, | think, to customize. Just
because we're always going to be there and we're going to constantly be seeing
what they're doing, how they're getting on the site, and the media rich banners,

10



MCDONALD:

VECCHIO:

CUNNINGHAM:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

where they're going. | think there is even more opportunity, honestly, to
customize. Obviously, seasonally, but also based on interast and what ads are
doing better than other ads, and all of that optimization. We have that much
data for an entire year it gives us a lot of flexibility to optimize.

This is Marty McDonzld for the record. | just want to add to that. That is
probably the most predominate and most noticeable shift. We were talking
about this is our planning yesterday, but there is so much orchestration in what
we're able to do now. We have seen some new skill sets emerge in the
TravelNevada team and we're really looking deeply at what's performing—we're
really reading analytics in a new way on social. Now we're able to get in our
planning conversations to say, that data that tells us, in this part of it, they
responded more positively to this content piece than that one. We're able to do
some testing. It's really exciting. It kind of makes your head spin.

We have had some long, exhausting conversations, but it's a right thing. | think
that our journey at Fahlgren Mortine, our first task was really to see it evolve
the brand and introduce a new creative treatment and now we're almost
stylizing into @ more agile marketing, where we're letting data and analytics
inform more micro-choices and decisions. | think we're good from a brand
overall direction, a place, where now we're making really more informed data-
based decisions. It's really exciting progress. [t's a little harder to do but it's
much more valuable and we’re able to tell what is working and adjust
accordingly.

Claudia Vecchio. If | might just add to that. This is what | think is so exciting
about where this team has gotten us, is that this is the paid media side of it, and
Chris went through what they've done and they will go through here what they
are planning to do, but this whole team is finally becoming a really integrated
group.

You will see how the information that is sent out via paid media, and the
Facebook ads and these things, is going to marry with the messages that go out
via CRM, which they know this is a priority for this year. Then, how we talk
about the PR side of it, and how we talk about the social side. Kaitlin is crafting
these messages and communicating with people on the social side, This whole
idea of customizing it and micro-targeting, and micro-messaging, they really
embraced this. | have watched in amazement as this team, Sydney, Devon,
Bethany and Brenda are taking us to a place that | could have never imagined
before.

Oh. Good.

11



VECCHIO:

CUNNINGHAM:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

It's so integrated. They're talking to each other; their messages are right. You
know, | hate to be the one that pats us on the back.

No. You deserve it.

The team has come to such a great spot. | thank you for that. Anyway, thanks,
John, for that question because it allows me to kind of talk about how | think
we're really in a good place.

Claudia, this is Don Newman.
Go ahead, Commissioner Newman.

If 1 could jump in. | will be more than happy to do the back-patting here
because | know Jennifer and John both said, this is so impressive. The paid
media higher than the benchmark, those numbers are phenemenal. The fact
that the sophistication leve!l of this campaign, and how in-depth and strategic
this has evolved into—again, we wasted so much time previously getting to this
point, and the timeframe that they worked on this account, this has evolved and
it is so impressive. | hate to beat the Boise bandwagon, but | have been
spending more time with grandkids in that area and | see these ads constantly in
the Boise market. For us, through Certified Folder, our numbers, we distributed
over 7,000 brochures in that market, so Boise continues to be a really good
feeder market. | still think the golden triangle of the mountain-west sports
world with UNLV, UNR, and Boise State, continues to open up a lot of doors for
trave! throughout Nevada from idaho.

Again, the benchmark numbers, the paid media, the content, and then the
display, the social media evolved is fabulous, the videos are incredible. Sydney
and Brenda, content-wise, from this group, this is incredible. | am going to
nitpick one little thing only because it's me in Elko, Page 6 on the paid media
video, on the screen with ad experience, do you prefer the ads of Northern
Nevada Art Scene and JM Capriola Co., is reversed. If you could fix that going
forward, that would be a beautiful thing. Congratulations to Marty and your
team. Wonderful. This is great.

Thank you, Commissioner Newman. Let me ask a couple of questions as well.
While | echo the comments of fellow Commissioners and congratulate Fahlgren,
Marty and her team on what's going on in the progress we've seen and the
results I'm seeing. Asking a specific questions on the Paid Media Highlights
slide. To start with, the Sojern ads. It's always fun to see direct results from

12



RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

marketing efforts. Just educate me on the Sojern ads. In terms of, why do we
use that method for a benchmark and how that connects with our marketing
efforts? | don’t know enough about Sojern ads to understand why it’s here and
how it leads to the various results we have reflected on this slide.

Sure. This is Chris Richardson for the record. Sojern is basically an ad network.
They serve over thousands and thousands of sites, but the real benefit to them
is the way that they can target. We actually use a few different targeted
methods with them. Their proprietary targeting method is to look for people
who are going on to car rental sites, hotel sites, airline sites, Home Away, things
like that, and searching for places in Nevada, California or states that we label as
competitors that we're trying to entice them to come here instead. Once they
search and they don't book, they are tagged. If they book then they are not
counted, but if they were just looking and don't book, then they are tagged. As
they go around on the internet, travelchannel.com, Budget Traveler, USA Today
or anywhere else, they would be Iabeled as somebody that we could serve our
ad to. They can serve our ad anywhere across a number of sites. They have
been cookied and tagged as somebody who is in market to travel that we want
to speak to. That's sort of how they work.

We also use TNS who has a plethora of data about people who have come here
and what their preferences are. We actually target them as well. We use the
data on the TNS Integrated Marketing Effectiveness Studies. We use their data
and ours mixed together, but it's a way to reach a broad audience and get that
wide reach, while still being really, really targeted to people we know were
already kind of inclined or expressed some sort of interest in traveling.

Then because they have been tagged in some way, does our marketing material
go to them and that marketing material leads to car or hotel confirmations?

Yes. Exactly. If they see our ad, they are then tagged a second time saying they
did see our ad. Sojern goes on to monitor what they end up doing. That is what
the search is too. If they end up going to search for a flight after they have seen
our ad, they would be counted in that number. Then, if they do want to book a
flight, they would be counted into that group. But, it's only for using the
internet.

Okay. Thanks very much. Do we have any other questions from anyone in
Carson City, or in Las Vegas who want to talk?

Lieutenant Governor, this is Claudia. Can | just make one more comment? In
our August 16th Commission Meeting, we are going to start talking about

13



HUTCHISON:

WAGNON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

strategic planning for the upcoming year. This whole idea of how we're
measuring our programming, will be a key topic of that discussion. We are now
able to, through Sojern, and we're going to be incorporating other groups like
Arivalist or Adara, these other ones really take this all the way through the
person coming into the State,

No longer are we reliant on these somewhat nebulous numbers that come out
of our IME study, the Marketing Effectiveness Study, but we are actually able to
track our ads to that person in a very technically scary way. They can track
when you got on a plane, when you got in your car, they know that you stopped
here, there and there, and you did this while you were in Nevada. You are being
tracked, your every movement, which is scary but that then helps us to really
take this down to the very, most granular way.

As we look as a Commission, at how we measure the success of this
organization, mare than ever we are able to take that all the way through the
booking funnel, to the experience funnel. We can then determine through our
other kinds of research, people’s level of satisfaction with the experience. |
mean, we are now at a level where we can really understand these travelers like
we've never been able to before. The measuring of our success and the metrics
that the Commission will discuss, is a completely different game than it used to
be. These guys are taking advantage of this and as we get these other groups
onboard, it's an even more exciting way for us to track real success of these
campaigns.

Well, that's is something that is always demanded from people who are funding
our efforts. They want to know what the results are and have concrete
numbers, and what are the conseguences. And it's exciting that we can track it
this way and there's nothing technically scary about it, it is flat out scary. All
right. So, we're going to—

One more comment, Governor. | share Claudia's enthusiasm for the way that
this is coming together. This is very impressive the way the team has
integrated, and the integrated campaign strategy, et. cetera. We have an
incredible brand message that we've been working on for a few years and it's
becoming more and more genuine and authentic, tangible, and real. We
definitely have the brand right. The message is right. The campaign is obviously
delivering across the board.

I hope that we also have a strategy in place with this, with the right team and
resources and budget, to provide the kind of content that a campaign like this
requires because it is content-driven and the brand is very content-driven. We

14



VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

MCDONALD:

HUTCHISON:

MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

need to be turning out relevant, powerful, insightful content straight on
through. I'm sure we are.

This is Claudia. If | could just comment on that. We could always use more
financial resources, there is no guestion, we could always use more budget. |
can tell you that this team with Sydney, Devon, and Kaitlin on social, Susan as
the Art Director, and being led by Bethany and Brenda, Marty's team with
Fahlgren, | have never seen a scrappier, smarter, more creative group of people
ever. The State of Nevada is really, really lucky to have them working on its
behalf. We could always use more resources but | think, and | hope as you see
this evolve, you will feel that same level of confidence in this incredible group of
people that put together this content for us.

We have scrappy marketing people?
We do. Scrappy.

Thank you. This is Marty McDonald for the record. If | may, | know Lieutenant
Governor that you just asked where we are in the section, but wait, there's
more. Again, getting back to Mr. Wagnon's comment and question, the Kinetic
section is really about the creative and expression side, you know? Any good
campaign is really head and heart. We've gotten you through the brain part,
and the targeting, and the paid, and strategy, but we need to talk a little bit
maore about the evolution of the creative and expression side, the heart side. So,
if there are no further comments, questions at this stage, we will keep going if
you would like?

Please.

Okay. So, going to the next slide. Thank you very much. You seen this from us
before, this is how we anchor our thinking, our planning, our creative, about
everything we do. Talking about, again, with Always On and as we're entering
this new phase, we’re focusing on another shift. On this spectrum, if we move
through the journey stages if you will, what consumers go from when they plan
and make decisions for travel. They start as dreamers, they move into planners
and then they become active shoppers to make their decisions.

We have got to speak to them in all phases of the spectrum. The biggest shift
now that you're going to see go forward, and we will talk about how that
extends into content and creative, is this shift from dreamers to planners. So,
what that means for us, when we deliver messages, what we are asking them to
do is not just turn your head and notice us and drive awareness, we actually

15



Mevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

want you to take action. You will see a lot of hard-working ideas, to strategies,
calls to action that are shifting a bit to a specific action we want you to take.

We talk a lot about how to reach people in the right mindset, in the right
markets, and all of those things, we kind of walk you through and you will see
more of that as we get to our next meeting when we come back together to talk
about the media recommendations for fiscal 18. But, we really wanted to talk
about how that transitions into creative. | would like also to remind you of
where we have been. So, in '15 when we came on the scene, our story was
really about this introduction to this new brand message, "Don't Fence Me In”,
elevating that and drawing it out to the forefront, introducing a new idea into
the campaign, turning the “Don’t Fence Me In” into a mantra, a rally cry.
Introducing in fiscal '16, introducing these characters to embody the DFMI spirit.
We are inviting people to come here to Nevada, and go home with more stories
than souvenirs.

A quick aside, we're here for the business and to drive results, but | have to tell
a very quick story about what we put into the creative side of what we do.
There is always something beautiful that happens when we come to Nevada.
The story that happened at Comma Coffee. We were there waiting for our
cappuccinos and we were just standing there chatting and there was a woman
there who was very loudly talking about all the things happening in the world
that bothered her. She was talking about politics, all the things that you're not
allowed to talk about to strangers, and talking to anyone who would listen.

Everyone in the coffee shop sort of turned a shoulder to her and didn't quite
know what to do. A couple of ladies got up and left the café and we were still a
little unsure too, what should we do in this moment? It was clear there was a
local Nevadan about 20-years old sitting at the bar and saw this all happening,
and saw people turning away from her, he gathered his things and he went and
sat down and listened to what she had to say.

It was just a really neat thing to watch. Those are the kinds of stories that we
like to sprinkle into our campaign and the kind of characters we like to bring
out. We will show you again how we are extending this character-driven,
character in front, what that means to the visitor, and how that, again, sprinkles
out into content we produce.

Fiscal '16, was about introducing the characters. Fiscal '17 was adding more
authenticity in the very beginning we had some time restraints, so we did more
of an authentic, a real Nevadan, character theme but we wanted real stories.
We wanted people whose stories weren't necessarily serving a role, within the

16



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

campaign, hut we just being Nevadans. We made some changes and shifts in
how we told the story. Now, in fiscal '18, we're building equity in those
characters.

We have some choices to make. Do we extend the cast and have 35 main
characters that we pull to the front? We could do that, but we need a different
content approach. So rather than do that, we're going to amplify and build
equity in a limited set of the characters that we have. | am going to ask Mark
Westman to come up and show you rather than tell you what that looks like.

Insider’s Look Character Campaign

WESTMAN:

Thank you. This is Mark Westman for the record. For us, this is one of the
exciting points of the campaign developing because the last meeting, we talked
a little bit more about the theory of it, what we were diving into, and now we're
getting further in connecting those dots.

When we talk about what's that means to build equity, there are two points
that we would like to talk about. One, is deeping the relevance in how that
character story comes to life, so that it's not just a piece of content in one place
on one website, in one social, one awareness driver. But if we develop a
character story we want to have the right level of ways to engage that consumer
from awareness zll the way through planning. If they're teased by one thing,
they're able to follow and pick up that story and go a little deeper, and then
have it bump into other things that might deepen your interest in Nevada.

That's the best way to move closer from just dreaming to planning. One of the
tricks in content marketing, too, is finding that right level of feeding both sides
and making sure you have enough things out there to broadcast and bring
people into it, add relevant content to interest them and share back out to
continue that relationship and conversation.

Whether those items live in static print or digital display, being somewhat
intentional about the screen blank that you could even say that that screen
should just be a play button. The screen is as much a phone as it is a computer,
and that might be served a video, a broadcast spot, maybe something like the
Kinetic app that we talked about which is a relatively new media that didn’t
exist a year ago so it's also in content marketing. Things that we might have
done two-years ago have been updated. There is a constant learning process.

Here is a snap shot of some of the characters we put together. The second
thing is we have an initial round of production, and ads that are coming to life,

17



Broadcast Storyboard

WESTMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

or coming to launch with a littie bit of limited exposure. We have an initial
stable of characters and our second portion of building equity is to round out
that body of characters to make sure that we're including all of the experiences
from north to south, and diversity of things that you can do in the State.

We have been working very closely with the very passionate and talented team
at TravelNevada. We give recommendations on what those stories are, how to
promote them, and bring them to life. | will run you through a few of the ones
started as static print ads, David Low tells us where the road ends, Nevada
begins. A little bit of talking about going off the trail, is where he really finds
the real Nevada and leading us to a call to action to let his story inspire yours.
Let my story be the beginning of yours, go to travelnevada.com where we can
then find a deeper dive video on David Low and we can find other experiences.

Aurel Baker, the wilderness athlete and enthusiast. We took her out to the
Ruby Mountains and had a great time capturing the video of her doing what she
is best at, which is some back-country skiing. She's telling us about the Rubies.
The Rubies are everything she loves in one super rad experience which gives us
a connection to what she loves about the mountains, the connection to her
father who was one of the first people to heli-ski that mountain range. There is
also a video about her, which will connect the dots.

Eric Burke is an international renowned mural artist. We had the opportunity to
capture him in Reno with one of his pieces, and the statement that, | make art in
a State that is living art. His passion for painting in the public eye and creating
that imagery that allows him dialogue and a connection to the places that make
Nevada so unique and special. Again, also allowing us to use it as a prompt to
begin our story of interest in Nevada.

Simple display things that are still a little bit of a work in progress, but looking to
start to populate paid media. Not only with basic display, but we will also start
to expand into the much more immersive units and native content that we
looked at with other recent results. We're looking forward to seeing how those
evolve and preform. Then, also looking to update the broadcast from what we
currently have, and keeping it in the voice of this campaign and leveraging
characters and authenticity of voice.

The storyboard we are putting in front of you is proposed to use a cowboy poet.
We portrayed Waddie Mitchell as a potential character for this, and he would
do what he is great at and give us a slice of Nevada through his medium. Then

18



Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

stylistically, as we portray him on the stage preforming, we would also overlay
and project over the top of him, quite a bit of imagery and scenery of other
character experiences we have used. | think this also gives way to answer the
question, what is one of our strategies for continuing to leverage content and
build it out, be scrappy. A good portion of the imagery that we're showing has
already been shot in previous productions, and in productions we just finished.
We keep an eye on things where we never say, let's just shoot more, and more,
and more, if we've already covered that, we're very purposeful. If we have
done several productions around the state and have great imagery that will
wark, this is just a way to reuse all of that.

What's the best way to bring this character to life? It will be two things for us.
At a risk of making everyone's ears bleed, | can read the copy for you. We
proposed a starting copy for this and | think also engaging artists like this, we
ask for their own interpretation and it works. So, take it with a grain of sand
dust. Mornin’ all you wanderers, those who long tc break free, the road has got
a story to be told by you and me. When the sagebrush comes a bloomin’ in the
gorge - a desert sea, Vll find you curiously wanderin, floatin’ careless, wild...
free. High or low — it matters not - the time, of night or day. Here, the stranger
finds a welcome, just as long as they should stay. The open road is beckoning,
come ride into the wind, if you listen closely you can hear “Don’t fence me in.”

The last scene of that is meant to bring up the SUPER to let my story be the
beginning of yours, but also to add a bit of authenticity and surprise in the spot.
The feeling that all throughout, we see him on stage with projected imagery of
Nevada, at this point we would like the backdrop that captures his projection to
drop, the projector go off, and reveal that he is in a Nevada landscape, he's
there for real and not on a stage. It allows us to introduce the current “Don’t
Fence Me In” song to keep it connected to previous campaign elements, but
updated in a way that that is relevant for many of the character stories that
we're telling currently.

Think about how the consumer is interacting with character stories. I'm showing
you a bit of static things, things that can inspire some digital ads, there will be
social ads that will go hand-in-hand with that. There are also some character
videos that the team at TravelNevada has spent a lot of time and energy to put
together. We have a salvo of those, four in total to show you, to look at some of
the current stories that are out there. The first one connects to Aurel Baker
who we saw in some of the previous ads, and part of our focus is to make sure
that we can tell these stories top to bottom, and in our next production, look to
round that out and capture the same type of asset. | will take a pause and let

19



VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

WESTMAN:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

these four videos play for you and let speak for themselves. There are technical
difficulties with the sound.

There is no sound. So, let's just bag that idea. We'll send them out to you.
Are we paused for technical difficulties?

Don, this is Claudia. Yes. We are not going to show those videos because we
don't have sound, but we will send those videos to you.

Okay.

But we're going to pause before we move forward because we have a couple of
action items based on the information that they just shared that we want the
Committee to vote on.

Okay. Can | make a quick comment?
Of course.

| feel that these characters, the character campaign, really is a great cross
section. Recreation with Park Ranger David Low, we're capturing the hiking,
biking, trail aspect of the State. With our skier, we're covering a large portion of
winter recreation from her experience and capabilities. | think we're getting
that. Then, the art scene throughout and across Mevada, is becoming very big. |
think that these three elements combined, really position us well. Hats off to
everybody that is involved with this because | think we're heading in the right
direction. So, well done. One quick question, | didn't hear, did Waddie draft
this poem or was this staff that come up with it for that?

This is Mark Westman for the record. It's a little bit of a mix of some vintage
poems that we found and some copy writing massaging at the Agency. We
want to structure that for how to tell that medium in 30-seconds is an
inspiration for Waddie working on a script to start with, but it was not from
Waddie himself nor a cowboy poet.

This is Claudia. If | might just add, this is just an idea concept of how this
broadcast would run. We haven't reached out to Waddie.

What is the action item you're looking at us considering? Can you identify what
action item you are talking about, Claudia?

20



VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

CUNNINGHAM:

WAGNON:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

Yes. If we go back to the action item, letter D, for possible action, the Overview
of the “Always On” Campaign Concept. | just wanted to get from this group
your approval of this concept. This is a little bit of change from the previous
seasonal-based campaigns. | want to be sure that you all felt comfortable in
moving forward with this Always-On concept that will shape our strategic
planning. | want to be sure that this group approves that direction first of all.

All right. You want a motion and a vote an this, is that what you said?
Yeah. That's what | am saying.

| move that we move forward with the “Always On” Campaign Concept. | love
that you're able to stretch it out over a longer period of time.

Second.

Claudia, are you just asking for the general approval of the “Always On”
campaign concept, and that's enough for you today?

That's correct. It does shift the way we allocate dollars for our marketing
campaign, so having the Marketing Committee agree that is the right way to go,
helps us to understand how to best allocate those funds.

Okay. We've got a motion to approve the “Always On” Campaign by
Commissioner Cunningham. Commissioner Wagnon has seconded that. Is
there any discussion on the motion? Those in favor, signify by saying aye.

Aye.

Any opposed, nay. That motion passes unanimously. |s there any other action
on this Agenda Item, and we are ready to move on to Agenda liem E, or are

there any other items on Agenda Item D?

Now, | think we have gone through the information for Agenda Item F, so if we
could...

Are we finished with Agenda Item D?
Yeah. We have done the “Always On” agenda item D and have approved that.

There is no action on the Character Campaign, but there is possible action on
the broadcast storyboard. Again, this is a concept, and | know you just looked at

21



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCRISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

WAGNON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

it, but we just want to know from the Marketing Committee, if you think this
Storyboard Concept is one that you want the team to continue to develop?

The storyboard concept is what we just looked at?

That's exactly right. That's the one with the concept that has Waddie Mitchell
as the poet, and the scenes behind, and what Mark went through with that
storyboard.

Okay. | understand. So, Agenda Item D was really the Character Campaign that
we discussed.

Yes.

And then we discussed—also included on Agenda Item E, we voted on that.
We're now on to Agenda ltem F, Broadcast Storyboard. That's what we just saw
with the campaign, broadcast slides with our cowboy poet, Waddie Mitchell. Is
that correct?

That is correct.

And the action item you would like is the same thing, approval of the storyboard
concepts. The Chair will accept a motion to approve the storyboard concept
with TV spots as identified and presented to us in this meeting today. Is there a
motion?

t have a little discussion on that. | love the campaign. | like the concept; it stays
with the character campaign. You know, it has a little bit of a cowboy feel to it,
which is fine. To me, it potentially starts to move in a direction similar to other
states like Wyoming and Montana, who also play off of that same sort of
character, the western cowboy sort of feel to it, to some degree. You know, |
think it's ownable and | think the fact that we have the content to back it up and
the visuals to back it up, it certainly is ownable, but-—that's not necessarily a
concern as it is just a comment,

The other comment. The “Don't Fence Me In”, tagline and the music, or
whatever version of that music, | think is critical to the continuity of the
campaign. Also continuing to build on this wide-open and free place that is
Nevada, more the emotional mindset that Nevada is. | felt like it definitely is
integrated in the second version where it actually ends with the music, and the
first version that was up there, it didn't show that.

22



WESTMAN:

WAGNON:

WESTMAN:

WAGNON:

WESTMAN:

WAGNON:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | August 2, 2017
Marketing Meeting

For clarity, everything | showed is all one continuous [crosstalk] commercial. So,
that are just the frames that—

Okay.

Also thinking, there was poor housekeeping in front of you, there was, an
absence of a “Don’t Fence Me In” logo, versus what's on the screen.

Yeah. | noticed.
This is Mark Westman for the record.

Okay. Got it. Perfect. Thanks. | would actually move that we keep moving
forward with the storyboard that you have presented.

| have a motion for approval of the storyboard concept, as it has been presented
to us in our materials today. Is there a second?

Yes. Commissioner Newman for the record. Second.

Okay. Commissioner Newman, for the record. Thank you. Discussion on this
motion? | think Commissioner Wagnon brings up a good point. | would be
interested in terms of commentary or thought about it, what's our target
audience, and does our target audience relate to a cowboy poet? You know,
we're shown a lot of millennial things, high adventure travel, adventure tourism
and that stuff, does that merge with the cowboy theme? | don't know the
answer to that. | don't know. | would be interested to know the demographics
of the people who show up to listen to cowboy poetry as opposed to people
who go do adventure skiing and mountain biking. Is that a congruous message?

This is Don Newman. If we look back at the southern Nevada history of
Helldorado and Las Vegas in the early days, as we move forward throughout
rural Nevada, and the fact that we're capturing our entire State here, it's not
just skiing, it's not just mountain biking. | mean, we've got a whole range of
elements here. So, is Waddie becoming the voice of Sam Elliot, is he becoming
the voice of Tim Allen in Pier, Michigan. | think it's brilliant, especially the
overlay of this character. He is authentic. He is more than a character, he is our
front and center character, but he is a real guy. | think we're headed in the right
direction with this.

My comments are going to the people who are targeting our audience and |
don't know the answer to the question. | question your Helldorado connection

23



NE

Thsi

v

1]
er t
i tn
i
h
|
i
t |
lit'l
th
i ]
; o
I
v a
1
I,
I
n Is
i of
i I
ri
uon ! h

it



